COMMUNITY PROFILE & PARTNERSHIPS OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 20 JANUARY 2014

Minutes of the meeting of the Community Profile & Partnerships Overview & Scrutiny Committee of Flintshire County Council held at Delyn Committee Room, County Hall, Mold CH7 6NA on Monday, 20 January 2014

PRESENT: Councillor Brian Dunn (Chairman)

Councillors Chris Dolphin, Robin Guest (Vice-Chairman), Brian Lloyd, Dave Mackie, Mike Reece and Nigel Steele-Mortimer

<u>APOLOGIES</u>: Councillors Ron Davies, Ian Dunbar, Ron Hampson and Paul Shotton. Chief Executive.

<u>CONTRIBUTORS</u>: (For minute No.34) Tom Hughes, British Red Cross Services Manager, Flintshire and Wrexham

IN ATTENDANCE: Member Engagement Manager and Committee Officer. Democracy and Governance Manager (for minute No.32)

Prior to the start of the meeting Councillor Robin Guest expressed his concerns at the number of Members who were absent from the meeting; he felt that this was discourteous towards the speaker who had been invited to attend to give a presentation to the Committee.

31. COUNCILLOR TED EVANS

Councillor Mike Reece suggested that the Chairman paid tribute to the late Councillor Ted Evans and asked those present to stand for a minute's silence.

32. <u>DECLARATIONS ON INTEREST (INCLUDING WHIPPING DECLARATIONS)</u>

The Democracy and Governance Manager gave a short address to the Committee on Declarations of Interest.

33. MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 7 November 2013, were submitted.

RESOLVED:

That the minutes be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

34. PRESENTATION BY THE RED CROSS

The Chairman welcomed and introduced Tom Hughes, British Red Cross Services Manager, Flintshire and Wrexham, and invited him to give a presentation on the work undertaken by the Red Cross in Flintshire.

Mr. Hughes provided background information and an overview of the services offered locally. He explained the Red Cross held a local base at Holywell Community Hospital, Flintshire, and Wrexham Maelor Hospital, Wrexham, and that its services were open to anyone aged over 18. He advised that the Red Cross would visit individuals at home or in hospital to assess the help they required. The main points of the presentation were:

- Home from Hospital a short term support service offered to those returning home from a stay in hospital. Mr. Hughes explained that the service was funded by the Authority and provided help with practical issues around daily life, companionship, emotional support, advice, and carer support. The aim of the service was to prevent readmission to hospital. Mr. Hughes explained that this service had been instigated by Neil Ayling, now the Director of Community Services at Flintshire County Council, some years previously. It was a model which had been adapted for use across the country.
- Medical Equipment Loan Service to provide a loan of items of medical equipment such as wheelchairs.
- Emergency Carers Card
- Gofal a service which promoted the wellbeing and welfare of people over 50 by offering companionship and support as well as enabling people to access local activities and groups
- Winter Specific Service Provision to provide a fast response to anyone in crisis
- Practical Assistance Line to provide a direct link to the charity most appropriate to give support and practical assistance
- Community based First Aid

Mr Hughes provided additional information relating to the work undertaken by the Red Cross in schools to assist with integration into local communities, support provided to isolated vulnerable individuals in rural areas, and the response to the recent flood alerts around Flintshire.

The Chairman thanked Mr. Hughes for an informative presentation and invited Members to raise questions.

Councillor Robin Guest commented on the issue of individuals who were reluctant to seek help or refused intervention by Social Services. In his response Mr. Hughes explained that the Red Cross could provide a vital link in such circumstances as the organisation was familiar to the general public, particularly the elderly, and seen as a "trusted friend" to act on their behalf. He also explained that where support was required for longer than the short term the Red Cross would maintain assistance to the individual until further specialist services were put in place.

Responding to the further comments and questions raised by Members, Mr. Hughes expressed the need to raise awareness of the services provided by the Red Cross within Flintshire. It was agreed that the Member Engagement Manager would make arrangements for the 'Home from Hospital' scheme and Red Cross preventative services to become more widely known, through the Community Services management structure. It was also suggested that it would be helpful if information about the 'Home from Hospital' scheme could be included in local community newsletters/publications. The Member Engagement Manager agreed to send a communication to Members to encourage them to publicise the 'Home from Hospital' scheme in their community newsletters.

The Chairman thanked Mr. Hughes for his detailed and informative responses to Members' questions.

RESOLVED:

- (a) That the presentation be noted;
- (b) That the Member Engagement Manager would make arrangements for the 'Home from Hospital' scheme and Red Cross preventative services to become more widely known, through the Community Services management structure; and
- (c) That the Member Engagement Manager agreed to send a communication to Members to encourage them to publicise the 'Home from Hospital 'scheme in their community newsletters

35. FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

The Member Engagement Manager introduced the Forward Work Programme of the Committee and referred to the site visit to Dangerpoint at Talacre, which had been arranged for the next meeting of the Committee on 17 February 2014.

Councillor Mike Reece suggested that representatives of the Flintshire Credit Union be invited to attend a future meeting of the Committee. Councillor Nigel Steele-Mortimer also suggested that representatives of the Clwyd Special Riding Centre be invited to attend a meeting of the Committee.

RESOLVED:

- (a) That the Forward Work Programme be agreed;
- (b) That the Member Engagement Manager contact representatives of the Flintshire Credit Union and Clwyd Special Riding centre to invite them to make presentations to future meetings of the Committee.

36. MEMBERS OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC IN ATTENDANCE

	Chairman
	(The meeting started at 10.00 am and ended at 11.05 am)
Т	here were no members of the press or the public in attendance